
EP07/09/03: Stillwater Gardens  Page 1 
Report dated 28 August 2007 

 

  STAFF REPORT 

 
TO: Environment & Planning Subcommittee 
 Development Contribution Levies 
 
FROM: Dugald Ley, Development Engineer  

 
REFERENCE: BC070875   

 
SUBJECT: STILLWATER GARDENS - EP07/09-03 - Report Prepared for 

5 September Hearing 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
 Stillwater Gardens has recently applied for consent to erect a further 16 x two-

bedroom villas/self-contained dwellings on land (Lot 1, DP362961, 5271 m2) 
immediately to the west (over the stream) of the existing facility at 44 Templemore 
Drive.  The applicant has appealed the Council’s decision that Development 
contributions for 15 equivalent household units of demand (HUDs) for each of the 
services, ie roading, water, stormwater and wastewater that has been imposed for 
this development.  (Plan and application shown in Appendix 1 & 2) 

  
2. DISCUSSION 
 

Officers viewed this application as a residential activity rather than a commercial 
activity where the assessment criteria for commercial activities is set out in Table 3, 
Page 64, volume 2 of the LTCCP.   

 
It was the officer’s view that dwellings such as these were no different to for example: 

 
a) a detached dwelling at the rear of an existing dwelling where an elderly relative 

is looked after by their family; 
 
b)  a row of flats occupied by families or solo parents and rented out; 
 
c) A group of dwellings or flats owned or rented out by Housing New Zealand.   

 
Also the definition of a dwelling is set out in the TRMP viz – means a building or part 
of a building for a single self-contained house-keeping unit whether one or more 
persons (where “simple self-contained house-keeping unit” means a single integrated 
set if sleeping, ablution and cooking facilities.   
 
Dwellings can be as large as five-bedrooms and can be as small as a one-bedroom 
flat built.  In all cases each one would have been assessed at one HUD. 
 
This application is of a similar nature as outlined above where the dwelling is rented 
to the individual until the occupant no longer requires it.   
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On 19 June 2007 the applicant, through their designer/architect (David Todd Ltd) 
calculated the HUD amount using Table 3 from the LTCCP mentioned above.  
A copy of this letter is attached (Appendix 3). 
 
Council assessed the application to 15 HUDs for each service, ie first dwelling free 
(see attached Appendix 4).  Note also, Council gave some relief where the pavilion 
was not charged. 
 
The applicant through their legal adviser (Duncan Cotterill) on 9 August 2002 
appealed Council’s decision and made an assessment as set out in their letter (see 
attachment 4 pages, Appendix 5). 
 
I have summarised the applicant’s and TDC’s assessments in the following table: 

 
Table 1 

 HUDs 

Service Architect Lawyer TDC 

Water 10 10 15 

Wastewater 17 14 15 

Stormwater 13 13 15 

Roading 10 5 15 

 
As previously set out Officers assessed this application as a residential style activity 
rather than a commercial activity such as an office block, restaurant or similar.  
Clearly the applicant’s own advisers are at odds as to an agreed position for HUD 
amounts.   
 
If the Committee choose that the 16 villas (15 liable for development contribution) 
were principally for residential use then Council’s decision should be upheld.  Note 
the “Oxford” definition of a “villa” is a “…..detached or semi-detached house in 
suburban or residential district….” 

 
If, however as the applicant would suggest that this application is more aligned with, 
for example rental of an office block or commercial building, then the calculation as 
per the LTCCP (Table 3, page 64, Volume 2) should apply. 

 
For each service the following would apply: 
 
Table 2 

  HUDs 

Water – size of pipe into development 100 mm 
diameter 

 10 

Wastewater – number of pans/urinals ÷ 2 27 
2 = 13.5 

14 
(rounded) 

Stormwater – impervious surface ÷ 300 ie, 4014 
13 

13 

Roading – 1xcar park per dwelling + 3 for staff = 19 19 
3 = 6.3 

6 
(rounded) 

 
It is my view however that the application is clearly for “residential” use and that the 
officer’s assessment as outlined below be confirmed. 
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3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
 THAT the Committee upholds officer’s decision that the villas are deemed to be 

residential dwellings and are required to contribute one HUD each except for the first 
free one. 

 
 
 
 
 
Dugald Ley 
Development Engineer 
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APPENDIX 1 
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APPENDIX 2 
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APPENDIX 3 
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APPENDIX 4 
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APPENDIX 5 
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